
Please ask for Brian Offiler
Direct Line: 01246 345229
Fax:  01246 345252
Email:  democratic.services@chesterfield.gov.uk

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE DECISION TO BE MADE
26 September 2016

The following Executive Decisions are due to be made by the CABINET 
MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE on TUESDAY, 4 OCTOBER 2016.

Part 1(Public Information)

1.   Management Of Unreasonable Complaints Or Customers (C000L) 
(Pages 3 - 22)

Reports relating to the decision(s) to be taken are attached to this notice, unless 
they contain confidential or exempt information. A meeting will not necessarily 
take place when the decision is made. Please contact Democratic Services for 

more information.

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

For publication

Management Of Unreasonable Complaints Or Customers (C000L)

MEETING: 1. Cabinet Member For Governance

DATE: 1. 4 October, 2016

REPORT BY: Local Government And Regulatory Law Manager

For publication

1.0 Purpose of report

1.1 To seek member approval to a policy and procedure for the 
management of unreasonable complaints or customers, to amend and 
replace the Persistent and Vexatious Complaints Policy.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 That the policy and procedure on the management of unreasonable 
complaints or customers (attached at Appendix A) is approved.

2.1 That an annual report is provided to Standards and Audit Committee 
with information about the application of the policy and procedure 
during the year with any recommendations for amendment.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



2

3.0 Background

3.1 On 3rd December 2013 Cabinet approved a Persistent and Vexatious 
Complaints Policy for the Council.  

3.2 The covering report explained that if a person wishes to make a 
complaint against the Council, the Council has guidelines available to the 
public in the Complaints, Comments and Compliments Policy. 

3.3 The report went on to explain that increasing pressure on Council 
services had identified the risk from complaints and unreasonable 
customer behaviour which take up an unwarranted amount of Council 
resources. 

3.3 The purpose of the policy was to provide clarification for Council staff on 
the difference between justifiable complaints (which may be several in 
number) from a person, and people who are simply being difficult or 
unreasonable. 

4.0 Review of policy

4.1 Since the adoption of the Persistent and Vexatious Complaints Policy the 
Council has continued to manage complaints received from the public 
through the Complaints, Comments and Compliments Policy. During 
this time there have been a very small number of complaints which may 
have warranted consideration of whether or not to apply the Persistent 
and Vexatious Complaints Policy.

4.2 The policy has not been applied in any case since its adoption at the end 
of 2013. This is because, on consideration of the policy against these 
specific complaints, it was considered that the policy was not sufficiently 
robust to effectively manage them.

4.3 The policy has been completely reviewed in the context of experience of 
how matters are raised in complaints or by customers. A substantially 
revised and clarified policy, taking account of the new senior 
management structure, has been developed with external legal advice. 

Page 4



3

Those responsible for the application of the policy would be at a senior 
management level within the Council. 

4.4 The principal changes are to provide clearer guidelines for the 
application of the policy, to take account of current Ombudsman advice 
and relevant legal cases. The policy sets out a clear and proportionate 
procedure for warning the complainant and imposing restrictions, with 
provision for review and right of appeal. It also provides for an annual 
review by Standards and Audit Committee. 

5.0 Human Resources/people management implications

5.1 The Council does not expect its staff to suffer behaviour or complaints 
by customers which is/are unreasonable in content, tone or persistence.  
In appropriate circumstances the Council should take proportionate 
action to protect the wellbeing of its staff, members and contractors and 
also the integrity of its processes and limited resources. The policy 
considers the potential effect of unreasonable complaints on staff.

6.0 Financial implications

6.1 There are no specific implications arising from the contents of this 
report. Effective management of the rare instances of unreasonable 
complaints or customers will lead to reduction of time (and cost) of 
dealing with these matters and enable time to be spent more effectively 
on other matters and customers.

5.0 Legal and data protection implications

5.1 The policy takes account of the latest Ombudsman guidance and 
relevant legal cases and refers to relevant freedom of information and 
data protection guidance.

 
6.0 Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA)

6.1 A full EIA has been carried out. It is intended that the policy will enable 
all complaints to be dealt with fairly and the policy addresses equalities 
considerations. This policy is not anticipated to have a disproportionate 
impact on any group. A copy of the EIA is attached at Appendix B.

Page 5



4

7.0 Risk management

7.1 This report concerns effective handling of complaints and customers by 
providing a Council-wide policy on dealing with unreasonable 
complaints which or complainants who take up a disproportionate 
amount of council resources. 

Description of risk Impact Likelihood Mitigating Action

Excessive time taken 
up by customers and 
their complaints 
which are unmerited 
to the potential 
detriment of other 
work or valid 
complaints.

H M Ensure conformity 
across all departments 

and provide a 
framework for dealing 
with difficult cases or 
customers. A warning 
followed by 
appropriate restrictions 
could reduce the length 
of time of problematic 
behaviour and indicate 
a uniform objective 
approach which an 
individual would have 
to accept. The policy is 
proportionate and 
includes provision for 
review and right of 
appeal.

8.0 Alternative options and reasons for rejection

8.1 Keep existing policy: 

The Council has had a relevant policy in place since the end of 2013 but 
has never applied it, notwithstanding that some complaints might have 
warranted consideration of it. The existing policy is not robust enough 
and needs to be reviewed in the light of current advice and legal cases.

Page 6



5

8.0 Recommendations

8.1 That the policy and procedure on the management of unreasonable 
complaints or customers (attached at Appendix 1) is approved.

8.2 That an annual report is provided to Standards and Audit Committee 
with information about the application of the policy and procedure 
during the year with any recommendations for amendment.

9.0 Reason for recommendations

9.1 To provide clear guidance and assistance to staff when faced with 
individuals or complaints which are classed as vexatious or persistent, 
whilst ensuring that the complaint is handled or individual’s needs met 
in a manner which does not involve disproportionate time or difficulty.

Decision information

Key decision number N/A
Wards affected All
Links to Council Plan 
priorities

to improve the quality of life for 
local people
to provide value for money 
services

Document information

Report author Contact number/email
Gerard Rogers 01246 345310

gerard.rogers@chesterfield.gov.uk
Background documents

Persistent and Vexatious Complaints Policy

Appendices to the report
Appendix A Policy and procedure on the management of 

Page 7



6

unreasonable complaints or customers
Appendix B Equalities Impact Assessment

Page 8



Page 1 of 10 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE ON THE MANAGEMENT OF UNREASONABLE 
COMPLAINTS OR CUSTOMERS 

 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 This policy and procedure is aimed at providing a framework: 

 
(i) to help identify what might be classed as an unreasonable complaint or 

customer; 
 

(ii) to manage the Council’s limited resources to help ensure that 
customers have access to our limited resources in a way which is 
proportionate to the issues being raised and the need for other 
customers to be able to access these limited resources; 

 
(iii) to set out openly how we will deal with unreasonable complaints or 

customers, what steps we will take if action is required and who can 
authorise these actions 

 
(iv) which we can provide to customers where this policy and procedure is 

applied so that the customer can understand the process. This may 
help to manage the customer’s expectations and behaviour. 

 
1.2 The council aims to deal with complaints and customers in a way which is fair 

and impartial. On occasion customers may behave unreasonably or make 
unreasonable complaints. Unreasonable customers or complaints can hinder 
the proper consideration of their cases and may delay consideration of other 
customers’ cases. Unreasonable complaints or customers can have 
significant resource implications for the Council. 

 
1.3 Customers may sometimes act out of character at times of anxiety or distress 

and/or their conduct may relate to a disability. Reasonable allowances should 
be made for such factors. Ultimately, however, the council does not expect its 
staff to suffer behaviour or complaints by customers which is/are 
unreasonable in content, tone or persistence. In appropriate circumstances 
the Council will take proportionate action to protect the wellbeing of its staff, 
members and contractors and also the integrity of its processes and limited 
resources. 

 
1.4 If the Council considers that any unreasonable conduct or complaint is or 

might be related to a disability, or because the customer’s first language is not 
English, the Policy and Communications Manager should be consulted for 
advice and assistance to manage the issues arising under this policy and 
procedure where appropriate.  

 

Page 9



Page 2 of 10 
 

1.5 When considering this policy and procedure the Council will also have regard 
to other relevant policies and procedures operated by the Council which may 
include (but not be limited to): 

 

 Chesterfield Borough Council Access statement 
(https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/living-here/people-and-
families/equality-and-diversity/access-statements.aspx) 

 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion Policy 
(https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/living-here/people-and-
families/equality-and-diversity/equality-diversity-and-social-inclusion-
policy.aspx) 

 Aggressive customer behaviour – guidance to employees 
(https://aspire.interactgo.com/Interact/Pages/Content/Document.aspx?i
d=1670) 

 
When this policy is engaged it shall take precedence over these policies in the 
event of any uncertainty as to different processes to be applied. 

 
1.6 Where this policy and procedure is engaged the Council may take action to 

restrict conduct of the customer and access to Council services . Examples of 
the sort of restrictions which may be imposed are given in section 3.6 below. 
In the most serious cases the Council may bypass this policy and procedure 
and inform the police and/or take legal action with or without notice to the 
individual(s) concerned. 

 
1.7 Where restrictions are applied and/or legal action taken the Council will take 

steps to inform those who it reasonably determines ought to be aware of the 
steps / action taken and the outcome. The steps taken will depend on the 
facts of each case. 

 
1.8 It is to be emphasised that this document is a framework. It is not intended to 

be prescriptive since it is recognised that in those rare situations where 
customers behave unreasonably or make unreasonable complaints such that 
this policy and procedure is or might be engaged, each case will need to be 
considered on its own facts. 

 
1.9 This policy and procedure has been drafted with regard to the Local 

Government Ombudsman’s current guidance note on managing unreasonable 
complainant behaviour1. It will be reviewed annually and such reviews will 
take account of any updated guidance from the Local Government 
Ombudsman. 

 
1.10 When the Council is faced with what it regards as vexatious Freedom of 

Information Act [FOIA] requests it will have regard to relevant guidance from 
the Information Commissioner’s Office [ICO]2 and its own internal policies and 

                                            
1
 http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/advice-and-guidance/guidance-

notes/guidance-on-managing-unreasonable-complainant-behaviour  
2 https://ico.org.uk/media/for-organisations/documents/1198/dealing-with-vexatious-
requests.pdf  

Page 10

https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/living-here/people-and-families/equality-and-diversity/access-statements.aspx
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/living-here/people-and-families/equality-and-diversity/access-statements.aspx
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/living-here/people-and-families/equality-and-diversity/equality-diversity-and-social-inclusion-policy.aspx
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/living-here/people-and-families/equality-and-diversity/equality-diversity-and-social-inclusion-policy.aspx
https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/living-here/people-and-families/equality-and-diversity/equality-diversity-and-social-inclusion-policy.aspx
https://aspire.interactgo.com/Interact/Pages/Content/Document.aspx?id=1670
https://aspire.interactgo.com/Interact/Pages/Content/Document.aspx?id=1670
http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/advice-and-guidance/guidance-notes/guidance-on-managing-unreasonable-complainant-behaviour
http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/advice-and-guidance/guidance-notes/guidance-on-managing-unreasonable-complainant-behaviour
https://ico.org.uk/media/for-organisations/documents/1198/dealing-with-vexatious-requests.pdf
https://ico.org.uk/media/for-organisations/documents/1198/dealing-with-vexatious-requests.pdf


Page 3 of 10 
 

procedures when determining such matters, noting that a request may be 
refused if it is vexatious3 but that in that situation the test as to whether the 
request is vexatious applies to the request itself and not to the individual who 
makes it. Accordingly the engagement of this policy and procedure cannot of 
itself remove the obligations of the Council under the FOIA. Similarly with a 
subject access request the Council will have regard to such guidance as is 
available from the ICO4 as well as its own policies and procedures for dealing 
with such matters. 

 
1.11 It is anticipated that this policy will be invoked in only a very small number of 

cases. During the period between adoption in December 2013 and August 
2016 the previous version of this policy was not invoked at all. 

 
 
2.0 Unreasonable Complaints or Customers  
 
2.1 There is no single definition of an unreasonable complaint or customer. Each 

case must be judged on its merits. 
 
2.2 An unreasonable customer may pursue a justified complaint or concern but in 

an inappropriate way. Alternatively they may pursue a complaint which has no 
substance or which has previously been addressed in which case the 
complaint might be judged to be unreasonable. The concept of 
‘unreasonableness’ is typically identified by a customer conducting 
themselves in such a manner as to hinder the Council’s consideration of their 
own or other people’s complaints and by the customer conducting themselves 
in such a manner as to place a disproportionate demand on the Council’s 
resources. The conduct of an unreasonable customer may cause a 
disproportionate or unjustified level of disruption, irritation, stress or distress to 
Council staff or the Council’s contractors / partners. 

 
2.3 Whilst each case will ultimately turn on its own facts this policy and procedure 

may be engaged by one or two isolated unreasonable incidents or a build-up 
of incidents or behaviour over time which amount to unreasonable conduct. 
The focus is whether in all of the circumstances the complaint and/or 
customer are unreasonable. Examples of the sort of customer complaint 
and/or conduct which might be covered by this policy and procedure include 
(but are not limited to): 

 

 Refusing to specify the grounds of a complaint despite offers of help 

 Making a complaint or complaints which have no proper grounds 

                                            
3 The term ‘vexatious’ involves the manifestly unjustified, inappropriate or improper 
use of procedures. All circumstances must be considered but there will typically be a 
disproportionate or unjustified level of disruption, irritation or distress. When 
considering whether a request is ‘vexatious’ the focus should be on the impact of the 
request(s) rather than the behaviour of the requester 
4 https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/principle-6-
rights/subject-access-request/ See section What about repeated or unreasonable 
requests?  

Page 11

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/principle-6-rights/subject-access-request/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/principle-6-rights/subject-access-request/


Page 4 of 10 
 

 Unreasonably frequent or lengthy contacts and/or repetitive information 

 Pursuing a complaint only to annoy or disrupt or for reasons that are not 
identified or are not obvious 

 Refusing to co-operate with the complaints investigation process but still 
wanting the complaint to be resolved 

 Making unjustified complaints about staff who are dealing with issues and 
trying to have them replaced 

 Refusing to accept that issues are not within the remit of the Council’s 
Complaints, Comments and Compliments Procedure despite having been 
provided with information about the procedure’s scope 

 Insisting on the complaint being dealt with in ways which are incompatible 
with the Complaints, Comments and Compliments procedure or with good 
practice (for example insisting that there should be no written record of a 
complaint or aspects of a complaint) 

 Electronically recording meetings and conversations without the prior 
knowledge and consent of the other person involved 

 Where a complainant pursues a disproportionately large number of 
complaints with the Council or raises a multitude of unimportant questions 

 Where a complainant pursues a ‘scatter gun’ approach of approaching 
multiple external organisations with parallel complaints about the Council 

 Unreasonably repeating complaints which have previously been 
addressed (and as part of that perhaps seeking to add minor or immaterial 
additions to earlier complaints after the event as a basis for seeking to re-
open investigations) 

 Obstructing reasonable access for council staff (or agents) to tenanted 
properties or insisting upon unreasonable conditions for access 

 Persistently seeking to complain about matters that occurred outside of the 
one year time period usually allowed for the investigation of complaints 
without good reason 

 Acting towards staff or Council contractors or partners in a manner which 
causes or is likely to cause them nuisance or annoyance or harassment or 
distress 

 Persisting in conduct which the customer has been told is unreasonable 
 
 
3.0 Managing Contact 
 
3.1 The Council operates a policy and procedure which has proved effective 

when addressing Complaints, Comments and Compliments. This policy and 
procedure for the management of unreasonable complaints or customers will 
be used only where the Council’s day to day policies are unable to resolve the 
issues arising and where the complaint and/or the customer are deemed to be 
unreasonable. 

 
3.2 If an officer of the Council considers that a complaint and/or customer are 

unreasonable they should discuss their concerns, and the reasons for their 
concerns, with a member of the Corporate Management Team or Senior 
Leadership Team. 

 

Page 12



Page 5 of 10 
 

3.3 Warning: A Service Manager, a member of the Corporate Management Team 
or Senior Leadership Team may determine that the complaint and/or 
customer are unreasonable and that it is proportionate to issue a warning to 
the customer under this policy and procedure. The officer who determines that 
a warning shall be issued will write to the customer concerned within 3 
working days of that determination setting out: 

 
(i) why their complaint or conduct has been considered unreasonable 
(ii) that this policy and procedure has been invoked 
(iii) that a warning is being given to them under paragraph 3.3 of this policy 

and procedure 
(iv) what the customer is being asked to do to address the concerns raised 
(v) a request for the customer to consider the letter and amend their 

complaint or conduct (as appropriate) 
(vi) the actions which may be taken by the Council if the concerns raised 

are not addressed adequately (this will include informing the customer 
of the power of the Council to impose a restriction or restrictions on 
contact with the Council, the fact that any restriction(s) may be applied 
for a specified time period and how any restriction(s) might enable any 
continuing complaint or information request to be managed within the 
complaints policy or such other policy as is relevant) 

(vii) the right of the customer to appeal against the decision to invoke this 
policy and issue a warning (with reference to paragraphs 3.11 - 3.16 of 
this policy and procedure) 

(viii) an opportunity for the customer to write to the author of the letter to 
respond to the warning if he / she has proposals to address the 
Council’s concerns and avoid further escalation 

(ix) suggestions on how the customer might obtain independent legal or 
other advice 

(x) details of the customers right to complain to the Local Government 
Ombudsman or Housing Ombudsman about the engagement of this 
policy and procedure and/or any determinations made pursuant to it 
 

The customer should be sent a copy of this policy and procedure at this stage. 
 
3.4 Apply an appropriate restriction: If, notwithstanding a warning, the 

unreasonable complaint(s) persist(s) and/or the customer continues to be 
unreasonable then the officer of the Council who issued the formal warning 
(or another officer of the Council being of equal seniority or more senior to 
that officer) will determine whether a restriction or restrictions ought to be 
applied and, if so, the details of the restriction(s) (including their duration and 
the period of time after which the restriction(s) may be reviewed). 

 
3.5 The customer will be notified in writing of any determination to apply a 

restriction or restrictions. A decision letter applying a restriction or restrictions 
will be written by the officer who has made the determinations set out in 
paragraph 3.4 above. The decision letter should contain: 

 
(i) the date of the warning 

Page 13



Page 6 of 10 
 

(ii) a summary of the concerns raised previously and the previous steps 
required of the complainant to address the concerns 

(iii) the determination that the concerns have not been addressed 
adequately or at all and the reason(s) supporting this determination 

(iv) the restriction(s) imposed on the customer’s contact with the council 
(which will be proportionate and aimed at addressing the customer’s 
unreasonable complaint(s) and/or conduct and removing ongoing or 
future prejudice to the Council and/or its staff and/or contractors) 

(v) the period of time the restriction(s) is/are being put in place for 
(vi) the period of time before the restriction(s) will be reviewed (this is 

typically 6 months but will depend on the facts of the case) 
(vii) the customer’s right of appeal against the determination (pursuant to 

paragraphs 3.11 - 3.16 of this policy and procedure) 
(viii) suggestions on how the customer might obtain independent legal or 

other advice  
(ix) details of the customers right to complain to the Local Government 

Ombudsman or Housing Ombudsman about the engagement of this 
policy and procedure and/or any determinations made pursuant to it 
 

The letter should also enclose a further copy of this policy and procedure. 
 
3.6 Any restrictions which may be applied by the Council (under paragraphs 3.4 

and 3.5 of this policy and procedure) will be determined on consideration of 
the facts of the individual case at the time but they may include one or more of 
the following: 

 Placing limits on the number and duration of contacts with staff 

 Restricting telephone calls to specified days and limited times 

 Limiting the customer to one method of contact (e.g. letter or email) 

 Requiring the customer to communicate with one named member of staff 

 Requiring any personal contacts to take place in the presence of a witness 
and in a suitable location 

 Managing contacts with the assistance of an independent advocate 

 Refusing to register and process further complaints save for new matters 
which are considered by the Council to be appropriate for investigation 

 Stating that future correspondence will be read by a designated officer and 
placed on the file but not acknowledged unless it contains material new 
information 

 Ending correspondence on particular issues and referring the matter to the 
Ombudsman where appropriate 

 
This list is not exhaustive since each case must be considered on its facts. 

 
3.7 Reviews: When the time comes for the restriction(s) to be reviewed the 

review shall be conducted by the officer who applied the restriction(s) or by 
another officer who is of equal or greater seniority to the officer who applied 
the restriction(s). 

 
3.8 The outcome of a review may be that the restriction(s) shall remain in force, 

be varied or be discharged. The officer who has made the determination on 

Page 14



Page 7 of 10 
 

review should write to the customer with the decision on review within three 
working days of making the decision. 

 
3.9 Where the review results in the restriction(s) being discharged the customer 

should be informed of this within the timescale set out at paragraph 3.8 of this 
policy and procedure. 

 
3.10 Where the outcome of the review is that the restriction(s) remain in place 

following a review (whether in the form originally determined or in some varied 
form) then a decision letter should be sent within the timescale set out at 
paragraph 3.8 of this policy and procedure. The decision letter should contain: 

 
(i) the date of the imposition of the original restriction or restrictions and a 

copy of that decision letter 
(ii) a summary of the decision on review and key reasons for the decision 
(iii) the period of time before the restriction(s) will next be reviewed 
(iv) the customer’s right of appeal against the decision (pursuant to 

paragraphs 3.11 - 3.16 of this policy and procedure) 
(v) suggestions on how the customer might obtain independent legal or 

other advice 
(vi) details of the customers right to complain to the Local Government 

Ombudsman or Housing Ombudsman about the decision 
 

The letter should also enclose a further copy of this policy and procedure. 
 
3.11 Right to Appeal: Subject to the time limits set out in paragraph 3.12 of this 

policy and procedure the customer has a right of appeal to the Council 
against: 

 
(i) the decision to invoke this policy and issue a warning (including the 

determination sent to the customer under paragraph 3.3 of this policy 
and procedure); 

(ii) the decision to apply any restriction(s) and/or the decision as to the 
duration of the restriction(s) and/or the decision as to the period of time 
after which the restriction(s) may be reviewed (including the 
determination sent to the customer under paragraph 3.5 of this policy 
and procedure); and 

(iii) the decision to keep a restriction or restrictions in place following 
review (whether in their original form or a varied form) including the 
determination sent to the customer under paragraph 3.10 of this policy 
and procedure. 

 
The customer may also make a complaint to the Local Government and/or 
Housing Ombudsman (as appropriate) at any time. 
 

3.12 Any request to appeal to the Council must be made in writing and must be 
received by the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 21 calendar days of the 
date of the decision being appealed. For the purpose of calculating the 
deadline for receipt of an appeal the date of the decision being appealed will 
be taken to be two working days after the date of the decision letter. 

Page 15



Page 8 of 10 
 

 
3.13 A request for an appeal made within time shall be considered and determined 

by an officer of the Council who has had no previous involvement with the 
case and who is more senior than the officer whose decision is being 
appealed. Where there is no officer in the Council who is able to determine 
the appeal the Monitoring Officer may appoint a suitably qualified or 
experienced senior officer from another authority or a solicitor/barrister to 
determine the appeal.  

 
3.14 The decision on appeal should ordinarily be sent to the customer within 21 

days of receipt of the appeal by the Council. An appeal is by way of review of 
the earlier decision. 

 
3.15 A decision letter on appeal should contain: 
 

(i) the date of receipt of the appeal 
(ii) a summary of the decision on appeal and key reasons for the decision 
(iii) any practical implications arising from the decision on appeal (e.g. if a 

restriction is retained in principle but varied then what that means for 
the customer and when the next review of the varied restriction will be) 

(iv) a statement that there is no further right of appeal to the Council 
against this decision 

(v) suggestions on how the customer might obtain independent legal or 
other advice  

(vi) details of the customers right to complain to the Local Government 
Ombudsman or Housing Ombudsman about the decision. 

 
The letter should also enclose a further copy of this policy and procedure. 
 

3.16 A decision on appeal is a final decision by the Council on those matters 
contained within the decision. There is no second appeal from a decision on 
appeal to the Council. The decision letter on appeal will signpost the customer 
to the Local Government Ombudsman or Housing Ombudsman (as 
appropriate) should they be dissatisfied at this stage. 

 
3.17 Where a customer ignores the restrictions applied: If the issue(s) of 

unreasonableness persist(s) after the imposition of a restriction or restrictions 
then the officer who applied the restrictions or an officer more senior than the 
officer who applied the restrictions (and in any event an officer of at least 
Executive Director level) may make the decision to impose further restrictions 
e.g. terminating further contact with the customer on current issues and/or 
ending any ongoing investigations which are underway. In such a case the 
customer will be informed in writing of this decision and the reasons for it. 
There will be no right of appeal to the Council against such a decision. The 
customer will instead be signposted to the Local Government Ombudsman 
and/or Housing Ombudsman (as appropriate) should they wish to make a 
complaint. In a serious case the Council may bypass this policy and 
procedure and make a report to the police and/or take legal action with or 
without notice to the customer(s) concerned. 

 

Page 16



Page 9 of 10 
 

3.18 Where further restrictions are applied and/or legal action is taken the Council 
will take steps to inform those who it reasonably determines ought to be 
aware of the steps / action taken and the outcome. The steps taken will 
depend on the facts of each case. 

 
3.19 New Matters: Where a customer who is subject to any restriction(s) raises a 

new matter following the imposition of the restriction(s) the Council will 
consider whether the new matter has merit and ought to be considered 
further. The Council will inform the customer whether the new matter will be 
considered and, if so, how the restrictions in force will apply (if at all) to the 
new matter. Where the Council declines to consider a new matter the 
customer will be informed in writing and signposted to the Local Government 
Ombudsman and/or Housing Ombudsman as appropriate should they wish to 
complain further. 

 
3.20 Where a breakdown in communication occurs:  Very occasionally relations 

between a council and a customer might break down completely while a 
complaint is under investigation such that there is little prospect of achieving a 
satisfactory outcome. In such cases there may be nothing to gain from 
following through all stages of an organisation’s complaints procedure. In 
such exceptional circumstances the Ombudsman may be prepared to 
consider a complaint before the Council’s own procedures have been 
exhausted. The Council may seek advice from the Ombudsman and/or 
request the Ombudsman to consider the matter if it considers that such a 
situation has arisen. Where the Council does so it will inform the customer in 
writing so that the customer may express his or her views to the Council 
and/or Ombudsman if they wish to do so. 

 
 
4.0 Recording and Reporting use of this policy  
 
4.1 Records relating to the application of this policy and procedure will be kept by 

the Customers, Commissioning and Change Manager and shared with 
appropriate senior managers and as necessary within the Council. These 
records should include: 

 

 details of requests to invoke this policy and procedure which are not 
supported by the relevant senior manager 

 the name and address of each customer where this policy and procedure 
has been invoked 

 the number of warnings which have been issued 

 what restriction(s) is / are in force and for what period  

 the number of determinations which have been appealed and the outcome 
of those appeals 

 the number of reviews carried out and the outcome of those reviews 

 whether legal action was taken and, if so, details of the action taken and 
the outcome(s) 

 who within the Council was advised of any restrictions 

Page 17



Page 10 of 10 
 

 all correspondence relating to this policy and procedure sent between 
customer(s) and the Council (and any relevant third party e.g. Local 
Government Ombudsman or Housing Ombudsman) 

 the success of the policy in those cases where it has been invoked 

 the number of Ombudsman referrals and the outcome of each referral 
 
4.2 An annual report will be provided to the Standards & Audit Committee with 

information about the application of and success of this policy and procedure 
during the year and any recommendations for amendment 

 
 

 

Page 18



Date: September 2010  Issue 1 1 

APPENDIX B 
 

Chesterfield Borough Council 
 

Equality Impact Assessment - Full Assessment Form 
 

 
Service Area: Legal 
Section: Legal  
Lead Officer: Gerard Rogers 
 
Title of the policy, project, service, function or strategy the preliminary EIA is 
being produced for: Policy for the Procedure on the Management of 
Unreasonable Complaints 
 
Is the policy, project, service, function or strategy: 
 
Existing  
Changed  
New/Proposed  
 

STEP 1 – MAKE SURE YOU HAVE CLEAR AIMS AND OBJECTIVES 

 
What is the aim of the policy, project, service, function or strategy? 

 
 
Who is the policy, project, service, function or strategy going to benefit and 
how? 

 
 
What outcomes do you want to achieve?  

 
 

To provide a framework that supports employees to identify an unreasonable complaint 
and deal with such complaints in a consistent and fair manner.  

The policy will benefit employees by providing them with a framework with which to deal 
with ‘unreasonable’ complaints.  It will also ensure that all customers and complainants 
receive a consistent and fair response to their queries.  

 To manage the Council’s limited resources in an effort to ensure that customers have 
access to our limited resources in a way which is proportionate to the issues being 
raised and the need for other customers to be able to access the limited resources of 
the Council; 

 To set out in an open way how we will deal with unreasonable complaints or 
customers, what steps we will take if action is required and who can authorise these 
actions so that the customer can understand the process.  

 To ensure that the Council is able to provide reasonable adjustments as appropriate.  

Page 19



Date: September 2010  Issue 1 2 

What barriers exist for both the Council and the groups/people with protected 
characteristics to enable these outcomes to be achieved? 
 

 
 
 

STEP 2 – COLLECTING YOUR INFORMATION 

 
What existing data sources do you have to assess the impact of the policy, 
project, service, function or strategy? 
 

 
 
 

STEP 3 – WHAT’S THE IMPACT? 

 
Is there an impact (positive or negative) on some groups/people with 
protected characteristics in the community? (think about race, disability, age, 
gender, religion or belief, sexual orientation and other socially excluded 
communities or groups). You may also need to think about sub groups within 
each equalities group or protected characteristics e.g. older women, younger 
men, disabled women etc.  
 
Please describe the potential impacts both positive and negative and any 
action we are able to take to reduce negative impacts or enhance the positive 
impacts.  
 

Group or Protected 
Characteristic 

Impacts and mitigating action  

Overall impact The policy ensures that the wellbeing of employees (of 
any protected characteristics) is protected from 
unreasonable behaviour.   
 
It also aims to ensure that all customers have fair 
access to the Council’s limited resources.  

Age – including 
older people and 
younger people.    

No disproportionate impact anticipated. 

The Council has limited resources, and needs to ensure that customers have fair access 
to them in a way which is proportionate to the issues being raised.   
 

 Historical data about resources used on ‘unreasonable’ complaints, and 
management of such activities.  

 Best practice examples from comparable local authorities.  
 

Page 20



Date: September 2010  Issue 1 3 

Disabled people – 
physical, mental and 
sensory including 
learning disabled 
people and people 
living with HIV/Aids 
and cancer.  

The policy draws attention to the provision of 
reasonable adjustments, and supports employees to 
put appropriate adjustments in place.  

Gender – men, 
women and 
transgender.  

No disproportionate impact anticipated. 

Marital status 
including civil 
partnership.   

No disproportionate impact anticipated. 

Pregnant women 
and people on 
maternity/paternity. 
Also consider 
breastfeeding 
mothers.  

No disproportionate impact anticipated. 

Sexual Orientation – 
Heterosexual, 
Lesbian, gay men 
and bi-sexual 
people.  

No disproportionate impact anticipated. 

Ethnic Groups The policy draws attention to the provision of 
translation and interpretation services, and supports 
employees to put appropriate provisions in place. 

Religions and 
Beliefs including 
those with no 
religion and/or 
beliefs. 

No disproportionate impact anticipated. 

Other groups e.g. 
those experiencing 
deprivation and/or 
health inequalities.    

No disproportionate impact anticipated. 

 
From the information gathered above does the policy, project, service, 
function or strategy directly or indirectly discriminate against any particular 
group or protected characteristic?  
 
Yes   
No   
 

Page 21



Date: September 2010  Issue 1 4 

If yes what action can be taken to stop the discrimination?  
 

 
 
 

STEP 5 – RECOMMENDATIONS AND DECISION MAKING  

 
How has the EIA helped to shape the policy, project, service, function or 
strategy or affected the recommendation or decision?  
 

 
 

 

STEP 6 – KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT AND PUBLICATION 

 
Please note the draft EIA should be reviewed by the appropriate Head of 
Service/Service Manager and the Policy Service before WBR, Lead Member, 
Cabinet, Council reports are produced.  
 
Reviewed by Head of Service/Service Manager 
Name:  
Date: 
 
Reviewed by Policy Service 
Name: Katy Marshall  
Date: 6/9/16 
 
Final version of the EIA sent to the Policy Service  
 
Decision information sent to the Policy Service  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please see the actions identified in the table above. 

The EIA has reiterated the need for provisions within the policy for reasonable 
adjustments and the benefits of the policy for employees and customers in general.   

Page 22


	Agenda
	1 Management Of Unreasonable Complaints Or Customers (C000L)
	App A - Unreasonable Complaints Policy 2016 - final draft - clean
	App B - Unreasonable Complaint Handling Policy_Full EIA form


